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‘Al-powering’ the

Innovation Enginess:

Transforming for a brave, new world of business

With an Al-first transformative approach, we enabled global organizations to reinvent industry norms with new
products, solutions and ideas. Our strategic focus leveraged six powerful diversification levers.

Vertical

\Healthcare

Transportation
Hi-Tech

Insurance
Targeted
Customer Base &A

NCA  Account

Strategic

Tech Council

Archetypes

Hyperscalers

/ Mphasis.Al

Capability/Strength

Strong expansion of customer base
» Expanded client base beyond ‘“Top 10’ clients
» 73% increase in large deal wins in FY24 over FY23

» 13% revenue increase in ‘Beyond Top 10’ clients over
the previous year

Building winning verticals

« Healthcare, Insurance, Technology, Media
and Telecommunications (TMT), Logistics
and Transportation

» 52% share of revenue from emerging verticals
from 49% in the previous year

Revenue increase from expanded
geographies

» 42% y-0-y revenue increase in FY24 from
well-diversified clientele across verticals

« Intensified operations in Canada

« Invested in Riyadh, and nearshore models
in Taiwan, Mexico, Poland and Costa Rica

Talent Next

APAC
Europe

BlinkUX

Geography

Middle East

[echELE]

South America

e Leadership/Talent

|/‘-/New Leadership

Geek Talent
Cloud Nearshore

Kore.ai
WorkFusion

Silverline

Inorganic Play/Partnerships

Gearing up talent and leadership

for the new Al world

 Revitalized leadership in core geos, verticals and
technologies

« Expanded addressable market with new and enhanced
capabilities

« Next-level evolution of ‘Talent Next’ platform

Investment in inorganic play and
partnerships

» Continuous ecosystem development with AWS,
Microsoft and Google

« Strategic partnerships with specialist players such as
Kore.ai and WorkFusion

Seamless integration of Al capabilities
into technology landscapes

Development of Al-powered archetypes and solutions for
» Modernization opportunities

» Improved customer experience

» Productivity and efficiency gains, and growth at scale

» ‘Zero-cost’ transformation
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From the CEOzss:

Dear Shareholder,

Over the past few years, the IT sector has grappled with global uncertainty and related challenges. At Mphasis,

our key focus has continued to be our commitment to areas related to transformation and technology adoption.

This commitment includes developing organic capabilities, investing in partner-driven strengths, and building
competencies through acquisitions, especially in fields like artificial intelligence (Al). Our ability to combine technology
and human expertise to address client needs positions us well in this tech-first environment, with, for example,

the integration of Al into our solutions and archetypes.

Our expertise in Al has significantly enhanced our ability to deliver value to clients. Your Company has successfully
leveraged the Mphasis.Al business unit to create unique Al experiences for our clients. Our commitment lies in
accelerating Al integration through strategic partnerships and cutting-edge innovations. At Mphasis, we are dedicated
to delivering Al value to businesses worldwide by creating customized interfaces and domain-specific solutions that
empower organizations to thrive in this digital era.

Fiscal Year (FY) 24 has been another significant year for your Company:
» In FY24, your Company achieved new TCV wins of USD 1.38 billion

» Mphasis Gen Al Foundry, launched in collaboration with Amazon Web Services (AWS), is led by Mphasis.Al,
a dedicated business unit focusing on Al solutions

» We also launched Deeplnsights™ Doc Al, an intelligent document processing solution powered by generative Al
» Undertook strategic partnerships with companies such as Kore.ai, WorkFusion and CoreStack
» Received the 2023 ISG Star of Excellence™ Award in the “Emerging Tech” segment for Artificial Intelligence (Al)

Your Company also achieved the top quartile across several global industry rankings and assessments in

ESG in FY24. Mphasis has been acknowledged by S&P Global, EcoVadis Sustainability Rating and

CRISIL ESG Score for its ongoing commitment to upholding standards in Environment, Labor

and Human Rights, Governance, Ethics and Climate Strategy. 77

Through the Mphasis F1 Foundation, your Company, as part of ongoing social commitment,
has contributed towards long-term societal benefits in the following areas:

Environmental Sustainability: Partnered with United Way of Bengaluru and launched an
initiative on World Wetlands Day dedicated to the restoration of mangroves.

Education: Partnered with The Akanksha Foundation to impact over 11,100 children from
underserved communities through two schools operating under the School Projects in
Pune, as well as the Tech Vision program spanning across Pune, Mumbai and Nagpur.

Supported The/Nudge Institute, which launched a development action institute with three
impact streams. These streams include programs for incubation, startup acceleration and
a fellowship program placing senior executives with government officials for 18 months.

Inclusion: Mphasis recently partnered with AVAS to launch the ‘Universal Design and
Accessibility Walk for Arcause 4.0’. This walk from Chennai to Bengaluru raised awareness
about creating inclusive environments for individuals of all ages, abilities and
backgrounds.

As we contemplate the future, our optimism grows even stronger regarding the

vast and exciting opportunities that lie ahead. Our strong pipeline of large deals
underscores the significance of digital transformation and legacy modernization as
core themes for our clients. With the added momentum of Al adoption, organizations
are now poised for acceleration and greater success.

At Mphasis, our commitment to innovation and collaboration, sustainability
and social good drives us forward, ensuring that we stay at the forefront of
transformative technologies.

Finally, the foundation of our success lies in our dedicated employees, as
well as the unwavering support and guidance from our esteemed clients and
shareholders. | extend our heartfelt gratitude to each of you.

Regards,

Nitin Rakesh
Chief Executive Officer and Managing Director
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Future-forward into a
Re-imagined Era of Alsss
Unfolding unlimited possibilities for tomorrow

A deep dive into what seems volatile and uncertain today reveals a panorama of possibilities and
opportunities. However, to realize them calls for service providers to go beyond merely applying
Al — and actually orchestrate the system of people, process and technology.

We have a unique vision and implementation strategy to enable enterprises conduct rapid and low-risk
business model experimentation — we build this capability in three phases.

PHASE 1
Lay the foundation

We work collaboratively to
build enterprise platforms, one PHASE 2

piece at a time, by developing Unleash user innovation
applications to address current

. : Leveraging next-generation
business priorities and deliver everaging next-generatio

st vale Al (Gen Al) orchestration, we PHASI_E 3 .
empower business users to Experimentation at scale
directly build new workflows. 10 achieveltransformation

We provide personalized
Al-driven interfaces to foster
user autonomy and innovation.

We enable clients to gain full
control and experiment with
business models across their
entire enterprise, selecting the
pace of rollout and the specific
employee groups.




Unleashing
Competitive
Advantage
with Alsss

A committed focus on
client success

APPLICATION ENGINEERING & PLATFORMIZATION
Client: One of the largest commercial real estate firms

Mphasis solution: Al-powered engineering
productivity solution

Impactful outcomes
» >40% improvement in developer productivity

» >30% increment in reusability of software assets
« $44M+ documented cost avoidance

Our focused industry solutions spanning
our comprehensive archetypes deliver
unparalleled impact and outcomes to
global enterprises across industries

and geographies.

PRODUCTION SUPPORT/IT PRODUCTION ASSURANCE
Client: A large financial services provider
Mphasis solution: Mphasis’ NLP bot and Gen Al-powered models

Impactful outcomes
» 40% ticket reduction

e >35% reduction in MTTR (Mean Time To Recovery)

ZERO QA (QA - QE)

Client: A large global bank

Mphasis solution: Gen Al-enabled regression
optimization, quality control and test case
self-healing

Impactful outcome

» >40% productivity gain across enterprise
quality assurance and testing

— m——
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LEGACY MODERNIZATION .
Client: A large financial institution 9’ CONTACT CENTER TRANSFORMATION

Mphasis solution: Al-led relearning and | 4 Client: A managed mobility experience provider

code generation solutions Mphasis solution: New orchestration layer and
Al-powered dashboards

Impactful outcomes
» Modernization of core cards platform to a
BIAN-based composable architecture

Impactful outcomes
e 30% TCO reduction

« 10% improvement in SLAs

» >40% efficiency in the overall transformation
program

BUSINESS PROCESS TRANSFORMATION
Client: A large benefits administration company

Mphasis solution: Gen Al-based claim eligibility
determination, claim validation and human-assisted
claim adjudication

SERVICE DESK AUTOMATION

Client: A leading US-based
healthcare services provider Impactful outcomes
Mphasis solution: Mphasis.Al’s « Total transformation of the claims adjudication process

solutions - 85% efficiency gains

Impactful outcomes

» Transformation of IT operations

» 25-35% auto-resolution of
tickets

e 30% TCO reduction

« Enhanced user experience
through self-serve capabilities,
workflow automation and
zero-touch fulfilment

DATA MODERNIZATION FOR GEN Al ADOPTION
Client: One of the world’s top financial services firms
Mphasis solution: Al-led industry-leading data modernization solution

Impactful outcomes
« Integrated enterprise data platform in the risk and compliance area

« Trained and validated >2500 Al/ML models for both internal use and
external service (anti-money laundering)

. 5
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Elevating the

Innovation Quotientsss

Our IPs - Powered by Al

From powerful launchpads of focused industry solutions, platforms and partnerships, we have accelerated

and elevated our Al capabilities to new heights.

Mphasis Deeplnsights™ Doc Al

Offers a tailored LLM solution designed for
enterprise-specific requirements around document
processing, covering Information Extraction,
Information Discovery, Context-Aware Search and
Insight Generation with Recommendations.

Mphasis Synth Studio

An enterprise synthetic data generation solution
to generate high-quality synthetic data for
monetizing trustworthy business insights.

Modernization Platform

Accelerates modernization of legacy applications
(written in languages like COBOL and Java) using
Gen Al LLMs, to reduce relearning time by >50%.

6
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Developer Experience Platform

Builds on the modernization platform to generate
target states for modern applications, accelerating
the process by up to 50%.

Al Adoption Framework with LLM Ops
and ML Ops

Simplifies Gen Al adoption by bringing together
people, processes and technology to seamlessly
integrate it into operations, and achieve improved
efficiency and profitability.

Al-based Experience Platform

A personal conversation gateway that harmonizes
Al and human interactions for a seamless,
personalized and efficient workday experience.




An Impactful and Collaborative
Partner Ecosystemzss

Strategic handshakes to build powerful capabilities

We continue to foster strategic Al partnerships and continuously invest in developing this ecosystem to stay
ahead of the capability curve. The Mphasis.Al business unit integrates our Front2Back™ approach backed
by Cloud and Cognitive as pillars to unleash the power of Al, create hyper-personalized experiences and
drive customer-centric transformation.

We bring together the combined expertise of NEXT Labs, our research and innovation lab, and our
extended ecosystem (of acquisitions, partnerships and hyperscalers) to develop future-proofed Al solutions

for enterprises.

Language Models & Market places

@ Openal

BE Microsoft

Al2llabs o~
<J

amazon ‘ ANTHROP\C

® cohere

Opensource Models & Market places

OOMeta |~ Hugging Face

Image Models

D st

stability.ai

Synth Studio
" Deeplnsights’
MEP

Mphasis

¢ §ILVERLINE Salesforce Al

Conversation
Design

kore &0 aws Dedicated

FI Al Foundry o
& WorkFusion Partnership

S Google

databricks Other

Partners
L W\ beinformed

NEXT Labs Al solutions include Synth Studio,
Deeplnsights™ Doc Al, and Modern Engineering
Platform.

Mphasis Silverline, a Salesforce partner and

digital transformation consulting shop, enhances
customer experience, transformation, contact
center modernization and conversational Al-enabled
automation capabilities.

BlinkUX - an Mphasis Company, offers evidence-driven
conversational design that drives experience
transformation across the organization.

Our suite of Al offerings is further strengthened by our
strategic partnerships with Kore.ai for conversational
and generative Al-driven experiences, and WorkFusion
for Al-driven digital workers that transform operational
efficiency.

We continue to invest in our partnership with hyperscalers like AWS, Azure, Google, etc.
Some of our recent initiatives —

« Strategic Collaborative Agreement with AWS to deploy Gen Al in Financial Services

« Hybrid multi-cloud operating platform that will leverage Google’s Gemini Code Assist to accelerate
the software development life cycle

« Generative Al Blueprint in collaboration with Microsoft and OpenAl to help organizations seamlessly
integrate and adopt Gen Al solutions to boost efficiency and scale operations

......

7
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Talent Next for the ™
Next-Gen Al Erasss

Enhancing the cognitive-first tale

1
|

Our Talent Next program comprises a diverse array of learning avél I
learning, equipping our people with both technical prowess and lea
engaging instructor-led sessions and self-paced training suppleme
certification. Learner engagement is optimized through gamification &
real-time collaboration.

In FY24, we enhanced our learning catalog in cutting-edge digital skills
Data Engineering, Cybersecurity, UI/UX and more. !

The Mphasis Learning Academy (MLA) prepared campus recruits for
rigorous 3.5 months Delivery Readiness Program. In FY24, the academ
curriculum and certification process for improved effectiveness and faste

Ty
P

8
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Hi-Tech, Hi-Touch and

Hi-Trust sss

The essence of our client- and people-centric culture

We continue to build on our employee value proposition of being a Hi-Tech, Hi-Touch and Hi-Trust
organization. This is the foundation of our engineering DNA that integrates the best of technology, personal
touch and trust. It allows us to grow, innovate, nurture and empower our employees and clients — and help

them consistently stay ahead.
This is how we make it real.
Hi-Tech

Design-oriented | Engineering
DNA | Architecture-led | Geek |
Innovative

« We adopt next-gen technologies
and rapid product innovation.
For example, the Mphasis
Sparkle program drives joint
innovation with clients and
leverages the technology
ecosystem to keep them
relevant.

« We enhance employee skills
and competencies with
Mphasis Talent Next platform.
Our tech/career fairs,
hackathons and other tech-
enabled platforms encourage
employees to amplify their
geek quotient.

Hi-Touch

Empathetic | Global & Inclusive |
Personal

» Through hyper-personalized
services, we create superior
engagement with clients,
stakeholders, partners and
employees. Our Front2Back™
transformation approach places
clients at the core, and our
highly engaged and involved
teams ideate, innovate and
share best practices for growth,
resulting in high levels of CSAT
and NPS.

» We foster worldwide
collaboration with academia,
startups and technology
partners to craft industry-
relevant solutions.

-

Hi-Trust

Integrity | Walk the Talk |
Stewardship | Commit & Deliver

» We take care to create an
environment that fosters
confidence and security.
Employees feel safe to take
measured risks, experiment
and express their points of view
to help clients succeed.

« Our process transparency
and adherence to stringent
data protection build immense
confidence and trust among
our clients — leading to
long-lasting business
relationships.

»
-




Corporate Citizenship for
a More Inclusive Worldss:

Driving sustainability across the entire

business value chain

Mphasis F1 Foundation - driving
sustainable CSR

Mphasis’ CSR arm, the Mphasis F1 Foundation,
is committed to bringing social change by
applying the power of technology and disruptive
solutions across the four critical areas of
education, livelihood, inclusion and environmental
sustainability. Our partners include —

- lIT Madras to enable fundamental and applied
research in quantum technologies

« Ashoka University for machine learning and
computational thinking

« NCPEDP to promote equality for people with
disabilities through research and advocacy and
Assistive Technology

« Akanksha Foundation to reimagine learning
for students

« VigyanShaala to offer mentoring for the
innovators of tomorrow

« Magic Bus to uplift the journey from childhood
to livelihood with life skills and employability
skilling

» The/Nudge Institute empowers problem solvers
working on India's livelihood challenges

« United Way of Bengaluru to address critical
environmental challenges and make positive
changes in local communities through One
Billion Drops (to solve the water scarcity
problem for Karnataka), Dommasandra Lake
Rejuvenation (to create sustainable groundwater
sources through the revival of lakes),
Doddasagare Botanical Gardens (Sequestration
of CO, by increasing green cover), Mangroves
Matter (sequestration of carbon for mitigating
climate change risks)

ANNUAL REPORT © 2024

A multi-dimensional array
of ESG activities

We continued to deliver on our ESG
promise through our four powerful pillars
of architecting stakeholder value, applying
good governance, incorporating inclusion
and engineering climate sustainability.

Our commitment to our ESG
principles is reflected in the high
ESG industry ratings

« The S&P Global ESG Score of 64/100

» The CRISIL Sustainability Report features
us under the ‘Strong’ category with a
score of 63

» Bronze medal (54/100) in the
2023 EcoVadis Sustainability Rating




Diversity, Equity & Inclusion -
the Heartbeat of Innovationss:

Together, we celebrate our differences

At Mphasis, we are committed to building a culture of inclusion and acceptance where people’s uniqueness
is respected and celebrated.

Diversity, Equity & Inclusion (DEI) Key Tenets

Invest Inspire Involve

We believe in investing in Our inclusiveness is a core We believe that each employee
employees, regardless of their value that we uphold through plays a unique role in a
background, to promote a mentorship, training, storytelling judgment-free environment that
healthy, engaged and vibrant and opening doors to new shapes individualism, respect
workforce. opportunities. and appreciation.

« Our DEI Council comprises senior leadership to

provide expertise, insights and experiences to Key Highlights

create a more inclusive and equitable workplace . Signed the UN Women’s Empowerment
that benefits everyone. Our focus last year was Principles as a patron membership of
on conducting a pay parity study and analyzing ASSOCHAM

attrition rates among women for the year. A . R :
. « Certified with the ‘Disability Confident
« Our Integrated Circuit Program offers quarterly B i lovel 1 cortificate

interactions with client executives who share (United Kingdom)
their stories and lessons of life experiences .
« Member of the Global DEI Alliance,

to inspire our employees in their personal and o :
facilitated by The Times Group, to enhance

professional lives. obal 't tto DEI
our global commitment to
» Our celebrations of the Diversity and Pride :

months radiate our true spirit of inclusion to + Introduced a DE| dashboard for accessing
empower and enthuse our people in fostering an metrics to track progress on DEl initiatives
inclusive workplace culture. - Special referral campaign exclusively for

. Employee Resource Groups (ERG) at Mphasis women — resulted in 910 referral profiles
span a diverse range — Mothers Forum (to « Webinars and awareness sessions on
support working mothers), Allyship Program (to varied topics throughout the year

create a safe and inclusive work environment
for all groups), Sign Language (inclusivity for the
hearing and speech impaired), and more.

21
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Applause for
Excellencesss

Awards and recognition

Awards
Best Tech Brands 2023 - by The Economic Times

» A winner under the Technology Company of the Year
category at the 5" Annual UK-India Awards

» Bronze Stevie in Business Technology category
under Product Management & New Product Awards
at the 21%t Annual American Business Awards®

« Brandon Hall Group’s Gold for ‘Hi-Tech, Hi-Touch
and Hi-Trust’ Candidate Experience Model

» Recognized by BusinessWorld in
India’s Most Sustainable Companies (IMSC)

» Gold Equitable Hiring Award by Meytier

Candidate Experience Award for EMEA and
North America by the Talent Board

» Veda lyer, Global Chief Marketing Officer,
Head Hyperscalers and Strategic Partnerships,
Head Sales — APAC, Mphasis, awarded
The Great Indian MarTech Leader Award, 2023

« Manish Dugar, CFO, Mphasis, named CFO of the
Year - Large Enterprises, Service Industry by
Financial Express

« Transformational Partnership Award by |IT Madras

» PeopleFirst HR Excellence Award 2023 - Mphasis
awarded for exceptional practices in talent
management and Ankur Saxena, SVP and Head,
Talent Fulfillment and Strategic Operations, Mphasis,
conferred the Charismatic Business Leader Award

» Mphasis Ranked #43 among the Best Indian
Brands 2023

Mphasis EngineeringlsinOurDNA podcast series
awarded Platinum Winner of the 2023 -

Muse Awards and Gold Winner of the 2023
dotComm Award

12
ANNUAL REPORT © 2024

Industry Recognition
ISG

Leader/Rising Star at the ISG Industry Sourcing
Awards 2023

Leader in ISG’s IPL Mainframes — Services
and Solutions

ISG Star of Excellence™ - 2023 Award in the
‘Emerging Tech’ segment for Artificial Intelligence (Al)
and in the ‘ITO Segment’ for loT

Everest Group

Major Contender and Star Performer

Intelligent Process Automation (IPA) Solutions
PEAK Matrix® Assessment 2024

Major Contender

Application Transformation Services PEAK Matrix®
Assessment 2024 — Europe

Navigating the Platform Odyssey: Software Product
Engineering Services PEAK Matrix® Assessment 2024

Pega Services PEAK Matrix® Assessment 2024

Financial Crime and Compliance (FCC) Operations
Services PEAK Matrix® Assessment 2024

Application Transformation Services PEAK Matrix®
Assessment 2024 — North America

Data and Analytics (D&A) Services for Mid-market
Enterprises PEAK Matrix® Assessment 2023

Talent Readiness for Next-generation IT Services
PEAK Matrix® Assessment 2023

Healthcare Payer Digital Services PEAK Matrix®
Assessment 2023

Global In-house Center-focused Capabilities
— Provider PEAK Matrix® Assessment 2023

Cloud Services PEAK Matrix® Assessment 2023
— North America

Cloud Services PEAK Matrix® Assessment 2023
— Europe

Network Transformation and Managed Services PEAK
Matrix® Assessment — System Integrators (Sls) 2023

Banking Operations — Services PEAK Matrix®
Assessment 2023

Payments IT Services PEAK Matrix® Assessment 2023

Application Automation Services PEAK Matrix®
Assessment 2023

Enterprise Blockchain Services PEAK Matrix®
Assessment 2023

Asset and Wealth Management IT Services
PEAK Matrix® Assessment 2023

Healthcare Payer Operations PEAK Matrix®
Assessment 2023

Intelligent Process Automation (IPA) PEAK Matrix®
Assessment 2023



Positioned in “Horizon 1” in HFS Horizons Featured in Gartner’s

« The Best Service Providers for Asset and Wealth + Magic Quadrant for Custom Software Development
Management, 2024 Services, Worldwide
« Data Modernization Services, 2023 « Toolkit: Vendor Identification and Selection Guide for

s o ) Al and Data and Analytics (D&A) Service Providers
» Travel, Hospitality and Logistics Service . o .
Providers, 2023 + Market Guide for Digital Technology and Business

Consulting Services

« Tool: Vendor Identification for Cloud ERP, CRM and
HCM Implementation Service Providers

» Cards and Payments Service Providers, 2023
» Enterprise Blockchain Services, 2023

Positioned in “Horizon 2” in HFS Horizons » Tool: Vendor Identification for Digital Technology and
Cust E . Service Provid i Business Consulting Services
» Customer Experience Service Providers, i ) ] . )
& » Market Guide for Life Policy Administration Systems,

» Generative Enterprise™ Services, 2023 EMEA
» Digital Marketing and Sales Service Providers, 2023 « Market Guide for Life Policy Administration Systems,
Americas

HFS Highlight report on

« Mphasi i d tes t t
C-?o::siilice%lg;es and aggregates to mee » Cool Vendors in Quantum Computing

» Market Guide for Hyperautomation Service Providers

» Hype Cycle for Healthcare Data, Analytics and Al,
2023

» Market Guide for U.S. Healthcare Payers’ Core
Administrative Processing Solutions

» Mphasis amps Al-driven fincrime compliance
capabilities with unique WorkFusion partnership

Featured in Forrester’s
« The Al Services Landscape, Q1 2024
« The Automation Fabric Services Landscape, Q1 2024

« The Application Modernization and Migration Services
Landscape, Q4 2023

» The Time is Ripe to Get Your European Nearshore
Delivery Strategy Right

» The Microsoft Business Applications Services
Landscape, Q4 2023

» The Continuous Automation and Testing Services
Landscape, Q4 2023

« The Digital Transformation Services Landscape,
Q3 2023

13
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Key Operating Metricssss

NET REVENUE

% MILLION
1,60,000

1,40,000 137,985, ) 785

1,20,000 119614
97,223

1,00,000 85,435

80,000 77,310

’ 65,458
60,808 60,764 ’
60,000 53,573 01963 57,948
40,000
25,939
20,000 l

2012 2013 2014* 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

DIRECT REVENUE
< MILLION

1,40,000
1,29,921 126,938

1,20,000
1,08,882
1,00,000
80,210
80,000
65,480
56,808

60,000 46,233 47,463

40,000

20,000

2012 2013 2014* 2015 2016* 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
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BANKING, FINANCIAL SERVICES
AND INSURANCE REVENUE

¥ MILLION
1,00,000
90,000 87,195

80,000 75,500 77,993
70,000

60,000 50,370

50,000 14,505 50,136

40,000 L 38,466 38,781

30,000 20,484 28,293 ’

20,000 14,210

10,000 I .

2012 2013 2014* 2015 2016™ 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022" 2023 2024
< MILLION

45,000 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

40,000

35,000

30,000 20 T e 29,770 57 g1om 28,084
25,000 288 24,800" 24741

20,000 19,864

15,000

10,000

5,000

2012 2013 2014* 2015 2016™ 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

39,068

* Transition ** Figures from A Figures from # FY 2018 cash ## FY 2019 cash and  ### FY 2022 cash and
year 2014 FY 2016 are FY 2022 and cash cash equivalents cash equivalents
represents under the Ind AS onwards are equivalents are are net of cash are net of cash
5 months of framework and restated for net of cash outlay outlay of 9,949 outlay of 5,219
operations. the figures for certain changes of 11,060 million million for the million for Blink UX

FY 2015 and prior in account for the buyback buyback of equity acquisition and
years are under classification of equity shares shares completed ¥ 5,058 million for a
previous Indian effected in completed during during the year. special dividend of
GAAP. FY 2024. the year. 327 per share.
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Board of Directorssss

Davinder Nitin Rakesh Amit Dixit Jan Kathleen
Singh Brar Chief Executive Officer and Director Hier
Chairman Managing Director Director

!E, ! W)
David Lawrence Marshall Amit Dalmia Kabir Mathur
Johnson Jan Lux Director Director

Director Director

4

Pankaj Sood Courtney Karlan Maureen Sunil Gulati
Director della Cava Anne Erasmus Director
Director Director
EVP, GENERAL COUNSEL AND CHIEF SENIOR VICE PRESIDENT CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
ETHICS & COMPLIANCE OFFICER AND COMPANY SECRETARY Manish Dugar
Eric Winston Subramanian Narayan
AUDITORS REGISTERED OFFICE REGISTRAR & SHARE TRANSFER AGENT
BSR & Co. LLP Bagmane World Technology Center Integrated Registry Management Services Pvt. Ltd.
Embassy Golf Links Business Park Marathahalli Outer Ring Road (Unit: Mphasis Limited)
Pebble Beach, B Block, 3 Floor Doddanakundi Village, Mahadevapura 30, Ramana Residency, 4™ Cross, Sampige Road
Off Intermediate Ring Road Bengaluru - 560 048, India Malleswaram, Bengaluru — 560 003, India
Bengaluru — 560 071, India Tel: +91 80 6750 1000 Tel: +91 80 2346 0815-818
Tel: +91 80 4682 3000 Website: www.mphasis.com Fax: +91 80 2346 0819
Fax: +91 80 4682 3999 CIN: L30007KA1992PLC025294 CIN: U65993TN1987PLC014964
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF RISKS AND CONCERNS

The global economic landscape for the financial year ending March 31, 2024, was marked by a blend of opportunities and challenges.
Post the initial signs of recovery from the aftermath of the COVID-19 pandemic, uncertainties still persist, driven by geopolitical tensions,
high inflation and interest rates, and varying degrees of economic growth across regions.

Risk Management Framework at Mphasis:

At Mphasis, we are committed to proactive risk management to safeguard our business interests, optimize performance and ensure
sustained value creation for our stakeholders. Our risk management framework encompasses strategic, operational, and compliance
dimensions, enabling us to identify, assess, mitigate, and monitor risks effectively.

Your Company has a dedicated risk management function headed by Chief Risk Officer to coordinate all risk related activities across the
enterprise and periodically report the status of enterprise risks to the Board/RGMC/Audit Committee/MRMC.

At the management level, the Mphasis Risk Management Committee (MVRMC), provides the required oversight for the ERM program and
monitors the progress on various identified enterprise risks and periodically reviews the mitigation efforts. The MRMC is comprised of
four members of the ExCo team.

To provide the appropriate governance and oversight, given the criticality of risk management and to comply with the regulatory
requirements, the Company formed the Risk Governance and Management Committee (RGMC) comprising of Board Directors and
Company’s senior executives to assist the Board in discharging its risk governance and oversight responsibilities. This Committee
reviews the details of Risk Assessments undertaken by management every quarter.

Risk Intelligence: Pursuant to our larger goal of making Mphasis a Risk Intelligent Organization, this program aims to spot the ‘Black
Swans’ and manage ‘Gray Rhinos’ (external risks) on the horizon and manage them proactively. Using inputs from PESTLE/GRIC (Global,
Regional, Industry and Client) analysis, the Risk Intelligence framework complements the ERM program by evaluating / analyzing the
external global events that are likely to have an impact on the Company, enabling management to take informed and timely decisions.

Some of the important enterprise risks/concerns (covering strategic, operational, compliance risks) specific to the Company and steps
taken by the Company to mitigate these risks are given below:

Strategic Risks

Risk Header Risk Description Mitigation
Geopolitical Heightened geopolitical tensions and  There is no direct impact to your Company’s business. The indirect
Risks disputes, including but not limited to  impact in terms of rising costs, inflation and hence higher interest rates
the Russia- Ukraine War, Hamas Israel  does impact the company’s growth. The Company closely monitors
war, the recent Red Sea attacks, etc. developments to ensure we minimize impact, if any.
pose a risk of disruption to our global
operations, including supply chain
interruptions.
Technology Rapidtechnologicaladvancementsmay  Your Company has consistently invested in technology and R&D. The
Obsolescence render our existing solutions obsolete, Company fosters a culture of innovation and has entered into several
impacting our competitiveness and  strategic partnerships to stay abreast of emerging technologies and
market relevance. market trends. The Company's unique Tribe model, created to bring
the right tech capabilities across the company to stitch together the
most appropriate IT and business solutions, has positioned us well
to capitalize on the mainstream acceptance of emerging technologies
through focus on speed to market. The recent launch of Deeplnsights
Al, an intelligent document processing solution, powered by Generative
Al is a testament to the Company’s technological capabilities and
advancements.
Business Dependency on a few key clients or ~ Your Company’s business concentration is a strategic decision

Concentration

markets exposes us to the risk of
revenue volatility and client-specific
challenges.

aligned with our goals to profoundly impact our clients’ technology
landscape. Your company enjoys a sizeable wallet share in these set of
accounts. In our journey to make the next billion dollars in revenue, the
Company invests significantly in New Client Acquisitions. Further, your
Company’s Management has devised a client diversification strategy,
targeting faster growth (in comparison to the top 10 accounts) in an
identified set of accounts — Focus 20 and Next 30 accounts. This helps
in strengthening relationships with a broader client base to mitigate
concentration risks.
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Risk Header

Risk Description

Mitigation

Competition
and
outsourcing
risks

Mphasis faces a risk when the IT
units or Global Innovation / Capability
Centers (GICs or GCCs) of our existing
and potential clients choose to build
technology skills in-house instead of
outsourcing to technology firms.

Your Company views this as an opportunity to work with the clients
to build their in-house capabilities and assist in their operations.
Further, the Company’s strategy and focus on proactive deal wins
helps mitigate this risk.

Operational Risks

Risk Header Risk Description Mitigation

Business Inefficient business delivery Your Company has implemented robust project management

delivery processes or disruptions in service practices and continuously improves them. The Company has
delivery could lead to client dis- also invested in necessary tools and technology infrastructure for
satisfaction and reputational damage. enhanced scalability and reliability.

Foreign Exposure to fluctuations in foreign Your Company follows a well-established hedging policy, which is

currency exchange rates may impact undertaken to protect from the unfavorable currency movements and

fluctuations our financial performance and is periodically reviewed by the Treasury Committee of the Board of
profitability. Directors of the Company.

Higher for
longer inflation
and interest
rates

A sustained period of high inflation
and elevated interest rates pose a
significant threat to our US mortgage
loan processing business. This risk
can negatively impact our profitability,
operational efficiency, and overall
business sustainability.

This is an uncontrollable risk. During this period, though the volumes
in our mortgage business declined, your company focused on
diversification of clients and improving wallet share to benefit when
the interest rates fall. Your Company also undertook several measures
to optimize operational efficiency and implemented cost saving
measures.

M&A Risks

Integration challenges arising from
mergers and acquisitions could result
in operational inefficiencies and
cultural mismatches.

Your Company has developed detailed post-merger integration
strategies to streamline operations and realize synergies.

Limited work
visas impacting
talent supply

Legislative changes that Ilimit
the availability of work visas and
contribute to deglobalization can
potentially impact outsourcing.

Mphasis leverages nearshore centers and offshore delivery to reduce
dependency on work visas. This strategy has also helped us sustain
the margin pressures.

Risk of fraud
(including
bribery)

Bribery or other fraudulent practices
pose a significant threat to our
company's ethical standing, legal
compliance, and overall reputation.
Offering or accepting bribes to
influence business decisions can lead
to severe consequences, including
fines and penalties.

The Company has implemented a comprehensive Fraud Risk
Management System consisting of policies and procedures,
training and awareness that provide direction for ensuring anti-fraud
mechanisms as a part of the fabric of the organization. In addition,
the Company through various governance structures, such as internal
audits, whistleblower mechanisms and an independent investigation
team has built a strong framework to detect and mitigate fraud risk.
Further, the Company has established appropriate mechanisms to
ensure compliance to anti bribery laws such as the FCPA and the
UKBA.
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Compliance Risks

Risk Header

Risk Description

Mitigation

Regulatory
Compliance

Evolving  regulatory  landscapes
across jurisdictions pose compliance
challenges, including data privacy,
intellectual property, and ESG norms.

Your Company has established a robust compliance management
solution to track compliance across jurisdictions. The Company
also uses services of professional consultants to ensure compliance
with domestic and overseas laws and regulations. The Company
has implemented processes to ensure internal stakeholders of the
Company are aware of statutory requirements and maintain required
evidence to demonstrate that due care has been taken by the
Company to ensure compliance.

Privacy

Data privacy breaches could lead
to legal liability and reputational
damage.

Your Company has implemented a robust Privacy Risk Management
Framework to ensure that the Company complies with the relevant
requirements. The Company has implemented measures to comply
with stringent requirements of General Data Protection Regulation
(GDPR) and all other applicable privacy regulations. These
measures are periodically reviewed and reported to the RGMC. To
ensure compliance to GDPR and other global privacy laws such as
CCPA, Australian Data Privacy Regulations, etc., the company has
implemented a Privacy Risk Assessment tool. Periodic trainings are
provided and awareness mailers are sent to all the employees to
sensitize on safeguarding privacy.

IP Infringement

Intellectual property infringements
could lead to legal liabilities and
reputational damage.

The Company has put in place mechanisms to detect and mitigate
any infringement of IP rights. To ensure this, the Company has
implemented technology-based solutions and has taken several
steps to hone the awareness level of the employees to ensure that
the Company’s IP is well guarded. Mandatory trainings, knowledge
sharing sessions and discussions on best practices are conducted
to ensure that this risk is well mitigated. The Company has also
implemented an enterprise-wide Open-Source Software (OSS) Policy
and conducted training, with the objective to provide governance
around harnessing the OSS regime and ensure compliance with OSS
Licenses and client contracts.

Non- Different countries periodically The Company has implemented a comprehensive Trade Sanctions
compliance announce sanctions regulations and Compliance framework to ensure compliance with sanctions
to Sanctions non-compliance to such sanctions regulations. The Company has established a ‘screening’ protocol for
Regulations can lead to serious risks and all vendors and clients to ensure that the Company does not deal with
penalties. sanctioned individuals, groups, entities or countries.
Non- Being in a human resource intensive The Company has put in place several measures such as local campus
compliance industry, movement of human resources hiring and offshoring and nearshoring of onsite work. The Company is
with to various countries for execution of equipped with the expertise to handle the complex immigration laws
Immigration client projects is a necessity. Changes in the relevant countries and has processes to ensure compliance.
laws and to visa regimes in countries where the In addition to an internal team with the right expertise, the Company
regulations Company is operating, including, in the has enlisted external consultants, wherever necessary, to ensure

form of increased scrutiny or rejections
of visa request, pose a risk of increased
cost of the operations.

The industry has also seen increased
scrutiny by various governments for
non-compliance with immigration laws
and have levied penalties on non-
compliant companies.

proper compliance with these laws. Periodic immigration compliance
reviews, audits, training, and awareness programs are facilitated to
ensure compliance with immigration requirements.
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ESG Risks
Risk Header Risk Description Mitigation
Disrupted Disruptions to operations due Mphasis has implemented robust business continuity plans and has
operations to extreme weather events or invested consistently in disaster recovery infrastructure.

environmental disasters may impact
business continuity and productivity.

Physical risks
of extreme
weather events

Physical risks posed by extreme
weather events, such as floods,
hurricanes, or wildfires, can impact
direct costs and infrastructure.

Mphasis has commenced a detailed climate risk assessment and
commits to investing in mitigation of physical risk exposures - be
it through infrastructure upgrades or location diversification. The
Company'’s robust BCP / DR plans assist in safeguarding employees
while enabling operations to continue seamlessly.

Pollution

Environmental pollution (including
from scope 3 emissions and water
pollution) can lead to regulatory
fines, legal liabilities, and reputational
damage.

The ‘hybrid model of operations’ has helped in establishing sustainable
practices in the business and also to minimize environmental impact as
a whole. Your Company is compliant with all applicable environmental
regulations and standards and is constantly working on contributing
to the environment and society.

Water stress

Water scarcity or stress in regions
where the company operates may
disrupt operations and increase
costs.

In addition to our hybrid model of working, Mphasis is addressing the

risk by adopting the following practices:

a) Water conservation initiatives and efficient water management
practices.

b) Diversification of water sources (suppliers base) and

c) Investment in water-saving technologies.

As part of the CSR activities, your Company is actively contributing to

the environment, for e.g., Mphasis has partnered with United Way of

Bengaluru (UWB), an NGO :

a) for the afforestation program in Doddasaggare Botanical Garden
in Tumkur district,

b) in construction of percolation wells in Lalbagh Botanical Garden
in Bangalore, and

c) to improve the groundwater levels and boost greenery and bio-
diversity at Yamare Lake.

Climate action
failure

Failure to adapt to climate change
or contribute to climate action
efforts may result in a drop in
demand and revenue as clients seek
environmentally responsible partners.

Your Company is a responsible business player and has integrated
climate change considerations into business strategy and operations.
The Company consistently invests in renewable energy and carbon
reduction initiatives. Mphasis is recognized by its clients for its
proactive engagement and collaboration to develop sustainable
solutions and meet shared environmental goals.

Diminishing
relevance as
partner

Inadequate ESG performance may
erode trust and credibility with clients,
leading to a diminished relevance as
a preferred business partner.

Our mitigation measures include the following :

a) Implementation of robust ESG policies and practices aligned
with stakeholders’ expectations.

b) Transparency and disclosure of ESG performance metrics to
stakeholders.

c) Continuous improvement and innovation to enhance ESG
performance and value proposition.

Chronic
physical risks

Chronic physical risks, such as sea-
level rise or heatwaves, in locations

where the company operates
may pose long-term challenges
to business  operations  and
infrastructure.

Mphasis has commenced a detailed climate risk assessment and

commits to investing in mitigation of physical risk exposures - be it

through infrastructure upgrades or location diversification on a need

basis. The scope of our assessment includes:

a) Long-term risk assessment and scenario planning to anticipate
and address chronic physical risks.

b) Investments in climate-resilient infrastructure and adaptive
measures.

c) Collaboration with local communities and authorities to mitigate
chronic physical risks.
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Data and Information Security Risk

Information and cyber security threats are growing in type and magnitude particularly related to information assets and data breaches.
These threats have become highly sophisticated and with the involvement of professional Cyber Criminals and Nation States these
threats have increased in the recent months. Successfully managing such threats demands high end technology and processes. To
mitigate these risks, your Company has implemented several measures including robust IT security frameworks, a Cyber Security
Strategy and is also certified on ISO 27001, an international Information Security Management System (ISMS) standard. This certification
provides a reasonable assurance to all concerned stakeholders that the Company has implemented adequate data protection and
information security measures. Further, the Company has also implemented certain highly sophisticated technology security solutions
to deftly ward off the threat of data breaches and cyber-attacks. Considering that some of our BPO projects process credit card data,
the Company undertook a special certification for being PCI DSS compliant (Payment Card Industry Data Security Standard - a global
standard). To provide high order of assurance to clients, the Company undergoes SOC 1 Type 2 and SOC 2 Type 2 audits annually,
these audits are conducted by independent third-party auditors. In addition to the above measures, your Company also hires expert
service professionals to test the cyber preparedness in the form of ‘Red Team’ assessments and mock attacks to identify gaps which
your Company then appropriately mitigates. Despite several major global cyber incidents, the Company did not face any incident that
impacted business operations during this period because of the fulsome measures we have taken.

The Mphasis Cyber Security Strategy (MCSS) which was developed in 2016-17 delivered on its objectives: risk reduction, business
enablement, resilience and brand protection. In light of the continued growth of cyber threats, the highly sophisticated attacks and
increasing regulatory scrutiny, Mphasis undertakes a comprehensive and critical review of its MCSS and the implementation of the
roadmap on an ongoing basis. This review included inputs from clients, shareholders, government agencies, and our own internal risk
assessments resulting in a recalibration of the MCSS to support the business for the next 2-3 years. A roadmap of initiatives has been
developed with clear milestones covering people, process, and technology to ensure achievement of the rigorous MCSS.

As people remain a constant security vulnerability, in part because of social engineering attacks, your Company has created a dedicated
function to drive employee security awareness and has leveraged technology solutions in addition to traditional programs to ensure we
have the appropriate security culture within the organization.

Continuity and Disaster Recovery Risk

Increased disruptions due to manmade and natural calamities pose a risk to the enterprise Information Technology infrastructure and
in turn to business operations. Recovery and availability of enterprise applications and infrastructure, post disruption have become
critical for uninterrupted service delivery. In addition to implementing Disaster Recovery for the identified critical enterprise applications,
the Company is certified on ISO 22301 which is an international standard for Business Continuity Management System (BCMS) and
provides reasonable assurance of continuity of service to clients. The Company has been able to deliver services despite several city
level disruptions due to manmade and natural calamities during last year.

In summary, your Company remains vigilant in identifying, assessing, and mitigating risks across various dimensions to ensure sustainable
business growth and resilience in a dynamic business environment. Our proactive risk management approach, coupled with strategic
initiatives and robust governance practices, positions us well to navigate uncertainties and, at the same time, capitalize on emerging
opportunities in the marketplace.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Mphasis Limited
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Mphasis Limited (hereinafter referred to as the “Holding Company”) and its
subsidiaries (Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”), which comprise the consolidated balance
sheet as at 31 March 2024, and the consolidated statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), consolidated
statement of changes in equity , consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including material accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated
financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid consolidated financial
statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at 31 March
2024, of its consolidated profit and other comprehensive income, consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Our
responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the consolidated financial statements in terms of the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
and the relevant provisions of the Act, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the consolidated
financial statements.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Evaluation of tax positions
See Note 23 and 31(a) to the consolidated financial statements

The key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

The Group’s operations in India are | Our audit procedures on taxation included the following:
subject to periodic challenges by local tax |
authorities on a range of tax matters during
the normal course of business, including
direct tax and transfer pricing matters.

Obtained an understanding of key tax litigations / demands and potential tax
exposures.

* Evaluated the design, implementation and operating effectiveness of the internal
controls relating to management’s assessment of the most likely outcome of
tax litigations / demands, potential tax exposures and related accounting and

Estimating the most likely outcome of the
9 y disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.

tax litigations / demands requires significant
judgement by the Group to determine the | ° We, along with our internal tax experts:

probability of tax authorities accepting a « read and analyzed select key correspondences and consultations carried out
particular tax treatment for potential tax by the Group including with their external tax experts for key tax litigations /
exposures, thereby having an impact on demands and potential tax exposures.

related accounting and disclosures in the o

inquired with the designated management personnel and external tax experts
to evaluate key assumptions and grounds of appeal considered by the Group in
estimating the most likely outcome of the tax litigations / demands in accordance
with the applicable accounting standards.

consolidated financial statements.

« evaluated the status of the recent tax assessments / inquiries, results of previous
tax assessments, legal precedence / judicial rulings and changes in the tax
environment. This is performed to assess and challenge the Group’s estimate
of the most likely outcome of key tax litigations / demands and potential tax
exposures.

2,

% verified the presentation and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
in compliance with the applicable accounting standards.
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Impairment testing of Goodwill

See Note 5 to the consolidated financial statements

The key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Goodwill is a significant item on the balance
sheet and the Group performs impairment
testing for goodwill annually.

In performing such impairment assessments,
the Group compares the carrying value of
each of the identifiable cash generating
units (“CGUs”) to which goodwill has been
allocated with their respective “value in use”
(VIU). The VIU is computed based on the
discounted cash flow method and is used to
determine if any impairment loss should be
recognized.

The discounted cash flow method involves
significant judgement in estimating the
revenue growth rates, operating margins,
terminal growth rates and discount rates
considered by the Group for each identifiable
CGU.

Our audit procedures on testing for goodwill impairment included the following:

Evaluated the design, implementation and operating effectiveness of the
processes and internal controls relating to impairment testing of non-financial
assets, including goodwill and related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements.

Evaluated the Group’s identification of CGU’s, their carrying value, allocation
of goodwill to each CGU and the methodology followed by the Group for the
impairment assessment in compliance with the applicable accounting standards.

Evaluated the basis of key assumptions included in the discounted cash flow
method, used for computing VIU of each CGU. This includes assumptions such
as revenue growth rates, operating margins, terminal growth rates and discount
rates with reference to our understanding of their business / historical trends and
macro-economic conditions prevalent in the geographies in which the CGUs
operate.

Engaged valuation specialists to evaluate the appropriateness of the methodology
used to compute the VIU of the CGU and the key underlying assumptions.

Performed a retrospective review of estimates by comparing the actual financial
performance of the CGU for the year ended 31 March 2024 with the projections
considered by management during the previous year and assessed if the
estimation process is reasonable.

Assessed the sensitivity of the outcome of the impairment assessment to a
reasonably possible change in key assumptions such as revenue growth rates,
operating margins, terminal growth rates and discount rates.

Verified the presentation and disclosures made in the consolidated financial
statements in compliance with the applicable accounting standards.

Accounting for Business Combinations

See Note 6 to the consolidated financial statements

The key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

During the current year, the Group completed
three material business combinations.

Accounting for Business Combinations
requires management including their
independent external valuation specialist
to exercise judgement with respect to
identification and valuation of intangible
assets acquired as a part of the business
combination. A significant portion of the
purchase price for each of the business
combinations has been attributed to
identified intangible assets and goodwill. The
valuation of identified intangible assets are
dependent on cash flow forecasts including
future business growth, expected synergies
and application of a discount rate, which
involves significant judgment.

Our audit procedures on accounting for business combinations included the following:

We read the acquisition agreements to understand the key terms and conditions
mentioned, including determination of purchase consideration and identification
of intangible assets.

Evaluated the design, implementation and operating effectiveness of the internal
controls relating to accounting for business combinations and related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements.

We, along with our valuation specialists, evaluated the appropriateness of the
methodology and reasonableness of the key assumptions used by management
(including their external valuation specialist) in determining the value of the
identified intangible assets.

Evaluated if the cash flow forecasts used in the valuation of the identified intangible

assets are reasonable, considering the historical financial performance, business
growth and expected synergies.

Verified the presentation and disclosures made in the consolidated financial
statements in compliance with the applicable accounting standards.
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Other Information

The Holding Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the Holding Company's annual report, but does not include the financial statements and auditor’s report
thereon. The Holding Company's annual report is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information identified above
when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the Holding Company's annual report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required to
communicate the matter to those charged with governance and take necessary actions, as applicable under the relevant laws and
regulations.

Management’s and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation and presentation of these consolidated
financial statements in term of the requirements of the Act that give a true and fair view of the consolidated state of affairs, consolidated
profit/loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under
Section 133 of the Act. The respective Management and Board of Directors of the Companies included in the Group are responsible for
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of each company
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; the selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to
the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements
by the Management and Board of Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Management and Board of Directors of the companies included in
the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of each company to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the respective Board of Directors either intends to
liquidate the company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process
of each company.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit. We also:

3 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has
adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the Management and Board of Directors.

*  Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern basis of accounting in
preparation of consolidated financial statements and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the appropriateness of this assumption. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as
a going concern.
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3 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities included in the consolidated
financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in
our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government of India in terms of
Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to
the extent applicable.

2 A. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

(@) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid consolidated financial
statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those books except for the matter stated in the
paragraph 2(B)(f) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014.

(¢) The consolidated balance sheet, the consolidated statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income),
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report
are in agreement with the relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements.

(d) Inour opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the Act.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as on 01 April 2024 taken
on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and on the basis of written representations received by the
management from directors of its subsidiary companies incorporated in India, as on 01 April 2024, none of the directors
of the Group companies incorporated in India is disqualified as on 31 March 2024 from being appointed as a director in
terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

() The modification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith are as stated in the
paragraph 2(A)(b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b) of the Act and paragraph 2B(f) below on reporting under Rule
11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014.

(9) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the Holding
Company and its subsidiary companies incorporated in India and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in “Annexure B”.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements (Continued)

B. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:
(@) The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2024 on the consolidated
financial position of the Group. Refer Note 19(b), 23 and 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

(b) Provision has been made in the consolidated financial statements, as required under the applicable law or Ind AS, for
material foreseeable losses, on long-term contracts. The Group did not have any material foreseeable losses on derivative
contracts. Refer Note 19(b) to the consolidated financial statements in respect of such items as it relates to the Group.

(c) There has been no delay in transferring amounts to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Holding Company
or its subsidiary companies incorporated in India during the year ended 31 March 2024.

(d) () The respective management of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies incorporated in India whose
financial statements have been audited under the Act have represented to us that, to the best of their knowledge and
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belief, as disclosed in Note 42 to the consolidated financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Holding Company
or any of such subsidiary companies to or in any other persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall:

* directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the Holding Company or any of such subsidiary companies (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or

. provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(i) The respective management of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies incorporated in India whose
financial statements have been audited under the Act have represented to us that, to the best of their knowledge and
belief, as disclosed in Note 42 to the consolidated financial statements, no funds have been received by the Holding
Company or any of such subsidiary companies from any persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Funding
Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Holding Company or any of such
subsidiary companies shall:

e directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Funding Parties (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”); or

e provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(i) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances,
nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of
Rule 11(e), as provided under (i) and (ii) above, contain any material misstatement.

(e) The final dividend paid by the Holding Company during the year, in respect of the same declared for the previous year, is
in accordance with section 123 of the Act to the extent it applies to payment of dividend.

As stated in note 43 to the consolidated financial statements, the Board of Directors of the Holding Company have
proposed final dividend for the current year which is subject to the approval of the members of the Holding Company at
the ensuing Annual General Meeting. The dividend declared is in accordance with section 123 of the Act to the extent it
applies to declaration of dividend.

The subsidiary companies incorporated in India have neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.

() Based on our examination which included test checks, except for an instance mentioned below, the Holding Company
and its subsidiary companies incorporated in India have used accounting softwares for maintaining its books of account,
which have a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant
transactions recorded in the respective software:

i.  Inthe absence of independent auditor’s report in relation to controls at service organisation for accounting software
used for maintaining the books of account relating to procure to pay process, payroll process and property plant and
equipment process, which is operated by a third-party software service provider, we are unable to comment whether
audit trail feature at the database level of the said software was enabled to log any direct data changes and operated
throughout the year for all relevant transactions.

Further, where audit trail (edit log) facility was enabled and operated throughout the year for the respective accounting
software, we did not come across any instance of the audit trail feature being tampered with.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements (Continued)
C. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor’s Report under Section 197(16) of the Act:
In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration paid during the current year by
the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies incorporated in India to its directors is in accordance with the provisions
of Section 197 of the Act. The remuneration paid to any director by the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies
incorporated in India, is not in excess of the limit laid down under Section 197 of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has
not prescribed other details under Section 197(16) of the Act which are required to be commented upon by us.

ForBSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

Amit Somani

Partner
Place : Bengaluru Membership No.: 060154
Date : 25 April 2024 ICAI UDIN:24060154BKFDHE9468
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements of Mphasis Limited for the year
ended 31 March 2024

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

(xxi) The Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order (CARO) report of the Holding Company did not include any unfavorable answers or
qualifications or adverse remarks. According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of the following subsidiary
companies incorporated in India and included in the consolidated financial statements, the CARO report relating to them has not
been issued by their respective auditors till the date of this principal auditors’ report.

Name of the company CIN Relationship
Msource (India) Private Limited U72200KA2000PTC038931 Subsidiary
Mphasis Software and Services (India) Private Limited U72200KA1998PTC038932 Subsidiary
Mrald Services Private Limited U62099KA2023FTC171132 Subsidiary

ForBSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

Amit Somani

Partner

Place : Bengaluru Membership No.: 060154
Date : 25 April 2024 ICAI UDIN:24060154BKFDHE9468
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the consolidated financial statements of Mphasis Limited for the year ended
31 March 2024

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid consolidated financial statements under Clause (i) of
Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

(Referred to in paragraph 2(A)(g) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

Opinion

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of Mphasis Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Holding
Company”) as of and for the year ended 31 March 2024, we have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Holding Company and such companies incorporated in India under the Act which are its subsidiary companies, as of
that date.

In our opinion, the Holding Company and such companies incorporated in India which are its subsidiary companies, have, in all material
respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating
effectively as at 31 March 2024, based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by such
companies considering the essential components of such internal controls stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note”).

Management’s and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for Internal Financial Controls

The respective company’s Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by the respective company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the
Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures
of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets
that could have a material effect on the financial statements.
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the consolidated financial statements of Mphasis Limited for the year ended
31 March 2024 (Continued)

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, including the possibility of collusion
or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the
risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

ForBSR &Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

Amit Somani

Partner

Place : Bengaluru Membership No.: 060154
Date : 25 April 2024 ICAI UDIN:24060154BKFDHE9468
29

ANNUAL REPORT e 2024



CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

(% million)
As at As at
Notes 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 1,967.33 2,249.12
Capital work-in-progress 3 136.93 54.60
Right-of-use assets 4 7,248.10 7,469.00
Goodwill 5 41,792.68 29,585.89
Other intangible assets 7 4,318.16 1,293.95
Intangible assets under development 7a 477.46 269.24
Financial assets
Investments 8 4,971.41 3,847.61
Trade receivables 13 2,771.84 1,333.66
Other financial assets 10 710.95 717.61
Deferred tax assets (net) 23 2,856.51 2,422.40
Other tax assets (net) 23 6,419.52 5,817.43
Other assets 1 1,307.42 1,503.83
Total non-current assets 74,978.31 56,564.34
Current assets
Financial assets
Investments 12 25,927.70 13,678.81
Trade receivables 13 24,255.63 25,206.32
Cash and cash equivalents 14 8,049.14 10,441.13
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 15 94.51 93.31
Loans 9 341.97 287.54
Other financial assets 10 1,715.29 1,435.35
Other assets 11 5,939.83 8,387.79
Total current assets 66,324.07 59,530.25
TOTAL ASSETS 141,302.38 116,094.59
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

(% million)
As at As at
Notes 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Share capital 16 1,890.05 1,884.07
Other equity 17 86,055.95 77,464.32
Total equity 87,946.00 79,348.39
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Lease liabilities 6,750.16 6,815.82
Other financial liabilities 18 2,422.99 329.03
Provisions 19 687.80 375.83
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 23 1,299.12 1,029.61
Other tax liabilities (net) 23 150.08 217.55
Total non-current liabilities 11,310.15 8,767.84
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 21 15,435.67 1,984.76
Lease liabilities 1,700.02 1,727.08
Trade payables 22
- outstanding dues to micro and small enterprises 23.98 13.84
- outstanding dues to creditors other than micro and small enterprises 7,959.15 8,626.31
Other financial liabilities 18 8,321.19 8,562.88
Other liabilities 20 3,079.59 2,431.85
Provisions 19 2,792.31 2,420.72
Current tax liabilities (net) 23 2,734.32 2,210.92
Total current liabilities 42,046.23 27,978.36
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 141,302.38 116,094.59

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached.

forBSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

ICAIl Firm registration number:
101248W/W-100022

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Amit Somani Nitin Rakesh Maureen Anne Erasmus
Partner Chief Executive Officer & Managing Director Director
Membership No. 060154 New York London

Manish Dugar Subramanian Narayan

Chief Financial Officer Senior Vice President &
Company Secretary
Bengaluru Bengaluru Bengaluru
25 April 2024 25 April 2024
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS

(% million)
Year ended Year ended
Notes 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Income
Revenue from operations 24 132,785.15 137,984.97
Other income 25 2,178.04 1,615.99
Total income (l) 134,963.19 139,600.96
Expenses
Employee benefits expense 26 79,253.27 80,757.80
Finance costs 27 1,608.67 972.58
Depreciation and amortization expense 28 4,104.99 3,252.42
Other expenses 29 29,313.04 32,887.59
Total expenses (ll) 114,279.97 117,870.39
Profit before tax (Ill) [()-(1)] 20,683.22 21,730.57
Tax expense 23
Current tax 5,775.90 5,078.68
Deferred tax (640.88) 272.67
Total tax expense 5,135.02 5,351.35
Profit for the year (A) 15,548.20 16,379.22
Other comprehensive income ('OCI')
Items not to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods
Re-measurement gains on defined employee benefit plans 179.47 14.68
Income tax effect on the above (77.47) (5.44)
Items to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods
Exchange differences on translation of financial statements of foreign operations 375.11 2,083.84
Net change in fair value of derivatives designated as cash flow hedges 1,210.72 (2,240.28)
Income tax effect on cash flow hedges (392.36) 780.68
Net change in fair value of investments in debt instruments carried at fair value
0.14 (4.66)
through OCI
Income tax effect on fair value of investments in debt instruments (0.32) 1.44
Total OCI for the year, net of tax (B) 1,295.29 630.26
Total comprehensive income for the year (A+B) 16,843.49 17,009.48
Profit for the year attributable to:
Equity owners of the Company 15,548.20 16,379.22
Non-controlling interests - -
15,548.20 16,379.22
OCI for the year attributable to:
Equity owners of the Company 1,295.29 630.26
Non-controlling interests - -
1,295.29 630.26
Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to:
Equity owners of the Company 16,843.49 17,009.48
Non-controlling interests - -
16,843.49 17,009.48
Earnings per equity share (par value ¥ 10 per share) 30
Basic (%) 82.42 87.05
Diluted ) 81.83 86.37

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached.

forBS R & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm registration number:
101248W/W-100022

Amit Somani

Partner

Membership No. 060154

Nitin Rakesh
New York

Manish Dugar

Chief Financial Officer
Bengaluru Bengaluru
25 April 2024 25 April 2024
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for and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chief Executive Officer & Managing Director

Maureen Anne Erasmus

Director
London

Subramanian Narayan
Senior Vice President &
Company Secretary

Bengaluru



CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

a. Equity share capital

Equity shares of ¥ 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid No. in million T million
As at 1 April 2023 188.40 1,884.07
Changes in equity share capital due to prior period errors - -
Restated balance as at 1 April 2023 188.40 1,884.07
Issue of shares (refer note 17) 0.60 5.98
As at 31 March 2024 189.00 1,890.05
As at 1 April 2022 187.82 1,878.25
Changes in equity share capital due to prior period errors - -
Restated balance as at 1 April 2022 187.82 1,878.25
Issue of shares (refer note 17) 0.58 5.82
As at 31 March 2023 188.40 1,884.07
b. Other equity (% million)
Attributable to the equity owners of the Company
Reserves and surplus Items of OCI
a b c d e f g h i i Total equity
Special attributable
Economic Share Foreign to equity
Capital Zone based | Cash flow Investments currency |shareholders
Securities  General Retained Capital redemption re-investment payments| hedging in debt translation of the
premium  reserve earnings reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve instruments reserve Company
As at 1 April 2023 | 1,773.19 2,045.10 59,600.21 361.39 251.66 2,211.97 2,037.64| (588.77) (3.22) 9,775.15| 77,464.32
Changes in
accounting policy or
prior period errors - - - - - - - - - - -
Restated balance
as at 1 April 2023 1,773.19 2,045.10 59,600.21 361.39 251.66 2,211.97 2,037.64| (588.77) (3.22) 9,775.15| 77,464.32
Profit for the year - - 15,548.20 - - - - - - - 15,548.20
Other comprehensive
income / (losses), net
of tax - - 102.00 - - - - 818.36 (0.18) 375.11 1,295.29
Total
comprehensive
income for the year - - 15,650.20 - - - - 818.36 (0.18) 375.11 16,843.49
Transactions with
owners of the
Company
Dividends - - (9,428.63) - - - - - - -| (9,428.63)
Issue of shares on
exercise of stock
options 659.80 22.05 - - - - (386.76) - - - 295.09
Total contributions
and distributions 659.80 22.05 (9,428.63) - - - (386.76) - - - (9,133.54)
Transferred from
Special Economic
Zone re-investment
reserve - - 1,275.60 - - (1,275.60) - - - - -
Share based
expenses - - - - - - 881.68 - - - 881.68
As at 31 March 2024| 2,432.99 2,067.15 67,097.38 361.39 251.66 936.37 2,532.56 229.59 (3.40) 10,150.26 | 86,055.95
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (Continued)

(% million)
Attributable to the equity owners of the Company
Reserves and surplus Items of OCI
a b c d e f g h i i Total equity
Special attributable
Economic Share Foreign to equity
Capital Zone based | Cash flow Investments currency [shareholders
Securities  General Retained Capital redemption re-investment payments hedging in debt translation of the
premium  reserve earnings reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve instruments reserve Company
As at 1 April 2022 1,155.61 2,031.38 52,519.33 361.39 251.66 1,556.74 1,114.81 870.83 - 17,691.31| 67,553.06
Changes in
accounting policy or
prior period errors - - - - - - - - - - -
Restated balance
as at 1 April 2022 1,155.61 2,031.38 52,519.33 361.39 251.66 1,556.74 1,114.81 870.83 - 7,691.31| 67,553.06
Profit for the year - - 16,379.22 - - - - - - - 16,379.22
Other comprehensive
income / (losses), net
of tax - - 9.24 - - - - | (1,459.60) (3.22) 2,083.84 630.26
Total
comprehensive
income for the year - - 16,388.46 - - - - | (1,459.60) (3.22) 2,083.84| 17,009.48
Transactions with
owners of the
Company
Dividends - - (8,652.35) - - - - - - -1 (8,652.35)
Issue of shares on
exercise of stock
options 617.58 13.72 - - - - (366.39) - - - 264.91
Total contributions
and distributions 617.58 13.72 (8,652.35) - - - (366.39) - - -| (8,387.44)
Transferred to
Special Economic
Zone re-investment
reserve - - (960.13) - - 960.13 - - - - -
Transferred from
Special Economic
Zone re-investment
reserve - - 304.90 - - (304.90) - - - - -
Share based
expenses - - - - - - 1,289.22 - - - 1,289.22
As at 31 March 2023 | 1,773.19 2,045.10 59,600.21 361.39 251.66 2,211.97 2,037.64 | (588.77) (3.22) 9,775.15| 77,464.32

Gain of ¥102.00 and % 9.24 on re-measurement of defined employee benefit plans (net of tax) is recognised as part of retained earnings

for the year ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023, respectively.

Pursuant to the requirements of Division Il to Schedule I, below is the nature and purpose of each reserve:
a. Securities premium - Securities premium reserve is used to record the premium received on issue of shares. The reserve is utilised

in accordance with the provisions of section 52 of the Companies Act, 2013.

b. General reserve - General reserve represents appropriation of profits. This represents a free reserve and is available for dividend
distributions. As the general reserve is created by a transfer from one component of equity to another and is not an item of other
comprehensive income, items included in the general reserve will not be reclassified subsequently to the statement of profit and

loss.

c. Retained earnings - Retained earnings comprises of prior and current year’s undistributed earnings after tax.
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (Continued)

d.

Capital reserve - ¥ 265.16 million represents receipts during the year ended 31 October 2012, upon termination of Mphasis
Employee Welfare Trust, in accordance with the Declaration of Trust made for administration of share-based payment plan in relation
to erstwhile employees of Mphasis Corporation. The net assets of the Trust were transferred to the Company upon completion of its
objectives in accordance with the provisions of the said Declaration of Trust. The same will be utilized for the purposes as permitted
by the Companies Act, 2013. ¥ 94.00 million represents Capital reserve created on redemption of redeemable preference share
during the year ended 31 March 2007.

Capital Redemption Reserve (‘CRR’) - Capital Redemption Reserve is created to the extent of the nominal value of the share
capital extinguished on buyback of Company’s own shares in accordance with Section 69 of the Companies Act, 2013. The reserve
will be utilized in accordance with the provisions of section 69 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Special Economic Zone re-investment reserve — The Special Economic Zone Re-Investment Reserve has been created out of the
profits of eligible SEZ units in accordance with the provisions of section 10AA(1)(ii) of Income Tax Act,1961. The reserve is required
to be utilized by the Company for acquiring eligible plant and machinery for the purpose of its business.

Share based payments reserve - Share based payments reserve is used to record the fair value of equity-settled share-based
payment transactions with employees. The amounts recorded in this account are transferred to share premium upon exercise of
stock options by employees.

Cash flow hedging reserve — Cumulative changes in the fair value of financial instruments designated and effective as a hedge are
recognized in this reserve through OCI (net of taxes). Amounts recognized in the hedging reserve are reclassified to the statement
of profit and loss when the underlying transaction occurs.

Foreign currency translation reserve (‘FCTR’) - Exchange differences relating to the translation of the results and net assets of the
Company’s foreign operations from their respective functional currencies to the Company’s presentation currency are recognized
directly in OCl and accumulated in the FCTR. When a foreign operation is disposed off, the relevant amount recognized in FCTR is
transferred to the statement of profit or loss as part of the profit or loss on disposal.

Investments in debt instruments - This reserve represents the cumulative gains and losses arising on the revaluation of debt
instruments (excluding interest income recognised in the consolidated statement of profit and loss) on the balance sheet date
measured at fair value through OCI (net of taxes). The reserves accumulated will be reclassified to profit and loss when such
instruments are disposed.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
As per our report of even date attached.

forBSR & Co. LLP for and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm registration number:

101248W/W-100022

Amit Somani Nitin Rakesh Maureen Anne Erasmus
Partner Chief Executive Officer & Managing Director Director
Membership No. 060154 New York London

Manish Dugar Subramanian Narayan

Chief Financial Officer Senior Vice President &

Company Secretary
Bengaluru Bengaluru Bengaluru
25 April 2024 25 April 2024
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(% million)
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Operating activities
Profit before tax 20,683.22 21,730.57
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash provided by operating
activities:
Depreciation and amortization expense 4,104.99 3,252.42
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (17.50) (18.14)
Net gain on investments carried at fair value through profit and loss (1,434.87) (734.61)
Share based payment expenses 881.68 1,289.22
Provision for expected credit loss 310.71 262.97
Finance costs 1,608.67 972.58
Interest income (528.06) (850.35)
Gain on lease modifications (34.05) (16.66)
Provision for other assets 139.01 -
Gain on reversal of contingent consideration (2,004.82) -
Unrealized exchange (gain) / loss, net (87.85) (65.24)
Operating profit before changes in operating assets and liabilities 23,671.13 26,322.76
Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Trade receivables 371.44 (8,712.80)
Loans (52.88) 40.14
Other financial assets (73.04) 45.26
Other assets 3,114.96 (861.00)
Trade payables (990.67) (827.43)
Other financial liabilities 966.12 463.40
Other liabilities (133.57) (660.68)
Provisions 825.20 (765.75)
Total changes in operating assets and liabilities 4,027.56 (5,778.86)
Income tax paid (net of refunds) (5,901.72) (5,926.25)
Net cash flows generated from operating activities (A) 21,796.97 14,617.65

36

ANNUAL REPORT © 2024



CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(% million)

Year ended
31 March 2024

Year ended
31 March 2023

Investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (936.92) (1,131.45)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 20.71 19.93
Purchase of investments (76,749.58) (80,446.43)
Sale of investments 64,851.45 81,800.68
Interest received 329.07 286.02
Payment for business acquisition, net of cash acquired (% 847.34) (refer note 6) (12,332.99) -
Investments in bank deposits (420.94) (15.72)
Redemption / maturity of bank deposits 418.47 1,311.80
Net cash flows (used in) / generated from investing activities (B) (24,820.73) 1,824.83
Financing activities

Proceeds from issue of shares 301.07 270.73
Repayment of borrowings (13,421.38) (13,787.39)
Availment of borrowings 26,386.34 10,230.34
Interest paid (833.35) (491.80)
Repayment of lease liabilities (1,665.52) (1,493.35)
Interest on repayment of lease liabilities (569.27) (478.03)
Dividends paid (9,427.14) (8,652.32)
Net cash flows generated from / (used in) financing activities (C) 770.75 (14,401.82)
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (2,253.01) 2,040.66
Effect of exchange rate changes (138.98) 132.00
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 10,441.13 8,268.47
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (refer note 14) 8,049.14 10,441.13

Refer note 4 & 21 for supplementary information on cash flow movements

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached.

forBS R & Co. LLP for and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm registration number:
101248W/W-100022

Amit Somani Nitin Rakesh
Partner Chief Executive Officer & Managing Director
Membership No. 060154 New York

Manish Dugar

Chief Financial Officer
Bengaluru Bengaluru
25 April 2024 25 April 2024

Maureen Anne Erasmus

Director
London

Subramanian Narayan
Senior Vice President &
Company Secretary
Bengaluru
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

The consolidated financial statements comprise financial statements of Mphasis Limited (‘the Company’) and its subsidiaries, collectively
referred to as ‘the Mphasis Group’ or ‘the Group’. The Company is a public company domiciled in India and is incorporated under the
provisions of the Companies Act applicable in India. The shares of the Company are listed on two recognised stock exchanges in India.
The registered office of the Company is in Bengaluru, India.

Mphasis Group, a global Information Technology (IT) solutions provider specializing in providing cloud and cognitive services, applies
next-generation technology to help enterprises transform businesses globally. Customer centricity is foundational to Mphasis and is
reflected in the Mphasis’ Front2Back™ Transformation approach. Front2Back™ uses the exponential power of cloud and cognitive to
provide hyper-personalized digital experience to clients and their end customers.

The principal activities of the below subsidiaries include providing Information Technology and Information Technology Enabled Services,
except for Digital Risk group which renders risk, compliance and technology related services to customers in the mortgage industry.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 have been approved by the Company’s Board of Directors on

25 April 2024.

List of subsidiaries with percentage holding

% of holding

B imoorporation P21 e o
Mphasis Corporation USA Mphasis Limited 100 100
Mphasis Deutschland GmbH Germany Mphasis Limited 91 91
Mphasis Australia Pty Limited Australia Mphasis Limited 100 100
gg;ijiﬁ?:ﬁ?iga') Software & Services China Mphasis Limited 100 100
Mphasis Consulting Limited United Kingdom Mphasis Limited 100 100
Mphasis Ireland Limited Ireland Mphasis Limited 100 100
Mphasis Belgium BV Belgium Mphasis Limited 100 100
Mphasis Poland s.p.z.0.0. Poland Mphasis Limited 100 100
Mphasis Europe BV The Netherlands Mphasis Corporation 59.62 59.62

Mphasis Limited 40.38 40.38
Mphasis Pte Limited Singapore Mphasis Europe BV 100 100
Mphasis UK Limited United Kingdom Mphasis Europe BV 100 100
Mphasis Software and Services (India) Private Limited  India Mphasis Europe BV 100 100
Msource Mauritius Inc. Mauritius Mphasis Europe BV 100 100
Mphasis Wyde Inc. USA Mphasis UK Limited 100 100
Mphasis Philippines Inc. Philippines Mphasis Pte Limited 100 100
Msource (India) Private Limited India Msource Mauritius Inc. 100 100
Wyde Corporation Inc. USA Mphasis Wyde Inc. 100 100
Mphasis Wyde SASU France Wyde Corporation Inc. 100 100
Wyde Solutions Canada Inc. Canada Wyde Corporation Inc. 100 100
Digital Risk, LLC. * USA Mphasis Wyde Inc. 100 100
Digital Risk Mortgage Services, LLC. * USA Digital Risk, LLC. 100 100
Investor Services, LLC. * USA Digital Risk, LLC. 100 100
e et e 086!
Stelligent Systems LLC USA Mphasis Corporation 100 100
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

List of subsidiaries with percentage holding (Continued)

% of holding

oron P o
o . ) Mphasis Consultin
Datalytyx Limited United Kingdom Lir‘;ite y 9 100 100
Datalytyx MSS Limited United Kingdom Datalytyx Limited 100 100
Dynamyx Limited United Kingdom Datalytyx Limited 100 100
i ) ) Mphasis (Shanghai
laphasis Dl Inormation Technology Senvices hina Sottwre & Sonices 100 100
Company Limited
Blink Interactive, Inc USA Mphasis Corporation 100 100
Redshift Digital Inc (refer note 1c) USA Blink Interactive, Inc - -
Mrald Limited United Kingdom ll\_/ilr?:taejs Consulting 51 51
Mrald Services Limited United Kingdom Mrald Limited 100 100
Mphasis Solutions Services Corporation USA Mphasis Corporation 100 100
Mrald Services Private Limited (refer note 1a) India Mrald Limited 100 100
eBecs Limited ** United Kingdom E’i'r';?taez's Consuilting 100 .
eBecs Business Solutions (Ireland) Limited ** Ireland eBecs Limited 100 -
Sonnick Partners LLC *** USA Mphasis Corporation 100 -
Shift US Holdings LLC *** USA Sonnick Partners LLC 100 -
Silverline Canada Holdings Inc *** Canada Shift US Holdings LLC 100 -
Sonnick Partners LLC 99
Sonnick CRM Solutions LLP *** India -
Mphasis Corporation 1
Mphasis Arabia Limited (refer note 1b) Saudi Arabia Mphasis Ireland 100 -
Mphasis Lanka (Private) Limited [refer note 1c] Sri Lanka Mphasis Limited 100 100
PT. Mphasis Indonesia [refer note 1c] Indonesia Mphasis Limited 100 100
Mphasis Infrastructure Services Inc. [refer note 1c] USA Mphasis Corporation 100 100

* Forms part of Digital Risk group.
** Acquired w.e.f. 1 July 2023 (refer note 6 (b)).

*** Acquired w.e.f. 12 October 2023 (refer note 6 (c)).

List of Trusts that are consolidated.
»  Mphasis Employees Benefit Trust.
»  Mphasis Employees Equity Reward Trust.

a) On 12 March 2023, Mrald Services Private Limited (India) was incorporated as a wholly owned subsidiary of Mrald Limited.

b) On 19 December 2023, Mphasis Arabia Limited was incorporated as a wholly owned subsidiary of Mphasis Ireland.

c) The application for winding up of Mphasis Lanka (Private) Limited, PT. Mphasis Indonesia and Mphasis Infrastructure Services Inc
has been made. Redshift Digital Inc, a wholly owned subsidiary of Blink Interactive, Inc was dissolved during the previous year.

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as
amended from time to time), presentation requirements of Division Il of Schedule Ill to the Act and other relevant provisions of the Act.
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost convention and on an accrual basis of accounting, except
for the following assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair value.

»  Derivative financial instruments.
» Investments classified as Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (‘FVTPL’) /Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income (‘FVTOCI’).
»  Fair value of plan assets less present value of defined benefit obligations.

»  Contingent consideration pertaining to business combination.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services. Fair value is the
price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date.

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current and non-current as per the Group’s normal operating cycle of 12 months. Current
assets do not include assets which are not expected to be realised within 12 months and current liabilities include only items where the
Group does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period.

The Group’s consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee (‘?’). The functional currency of the Company and its Indian
subsidiaries is Indian Rupee (‘T’). The functional currency of foreign subsidiaries is the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates. All the values are rounded off to the nearest million (INR 000,000) except when otherwise indicated.

The statement of cash flows have been prepared under the indirect method.

The Group has consistently applied the following accounting policies to all periods presented in these consolidated financial statements.

Basis of consolidation

The Group determines the basis of control in line with the requirements of Ind AS 110 - Consolidated Financial Statements. The
consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company, its controlled trusts and its subsidiaries as
disclosed in Note 1. Control exists when the Group has:

» Power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee),
»  Exposure or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and

» The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns.

Entities are consolidated from the date control commences until the date control ceases. The Group re-assesses whether or not it
controls an entity if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three elements of control.

For the purposes of preparing the consolidated financial statements of the Group, the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Group have been combined on a line-by-line basis and intra group balances and transactions including unrealised
gain / loss from such transactions have been eliminated upon consolidation. Changes in the Company’s interests in subsidiaries that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amount of the Company’s interests and the non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount
by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity
and attributed to owners of the Group.

Consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies across the Group. The financial statements of all
entities used for consolidation are drawn up to the same reporting date.

Use of estimates, assumptions, and judgements

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make estimates, judgements
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent liabilities on the date of the
consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses for the year. Actual results could differ from those
estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Appropriate changes in estimates are made as
management become aware of changes in circumstances surrounding the estimates. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the year in which the estimates are revised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Application of accounting policies that require critical accounting estimates involving judgements and the use of assumptions in the
consolidated financial statements have been disclosed below:

Judgments:

Revenue recognition (Note 2.1, 24)

Determination of transaction price; identification of performance obligations and allocation of transaction price; recognition
of revenue from performance obligations over time or at a point in time; revenue recognition relating to variable consideration
arrangements; recognition of contract fulfilment costs and contract acquisition cost.

Business combinations and intangible assets (Note 2.3, 6 & 7)
Identification of intangible assets that should be recognized separately from goodwill

Leases (Note 2.5, 4)
Assessment of whether or not an arrangement contains a lease, whether the Group is reasonably certain to exercise extension
options.

Estimates and assumptions:

Revenue recognition for fixed price contracts using percentage of completion method (Note 2.1, 24)
Estimate of balance to go cost of efforts.

Business combinations and intangible assets (Note 2.3, 6 & 7)
Key assumptions in estimating fair values of the identifiable assets acquired on the acquisition date.

Property, plant, and equipment and other intangible assets (Note 2.4, 3)
Useful life of property, plant and equipment and other intangible assets.

Leases (Note 2.5, 4)
Determination of applicable discount rate.

Impairment of non-financial assets (Note 2.6, 5)
Impairment test of other intangible assets and goodwill; key assumptions underlying the recoverable amounts and the weighted
average cost of capital used to compute the present value.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments (Note 2.7, 38)
Unobservable sources for inputs to determine the fair value.

Defined benefit plans (Note 2.8, 37)
Key actuarial assumptions

Taxes (Note 2.11, 23)
Estimating the most likely outcome of uncertain tax positions; availability of future taxable income against which deductible
temporary differences can be utilized

Expected credit loss (‘ECL’) on trade receivables (Note 13)
Key assumptions in determining the weighted-average loss rate

Provisions and contingent liabilities. (Note 2.12,19, 31)
Key assumptions about the likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of resources.

2.1 Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognized upon transfer of control of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the transaction
price (net of variable consideration) allocated to a particular performance obligation.

The Group derives its revenues primarily from rendering application development and maintenance services, infrastructure outsourcing
services, call centre and business & knowledge process outsourcing operations and licensing arrangements.

>

Revenue from rendering application development and maintenance services comprise income from time-and-material, fixed
monthly billings and milestone-based fixed price contracts. Revenues from call center, business & knowledge process outsourcing
operations and infrastructure outsourcing services arise from time-based, unit-priced, fixed monthly billings and milestone-based
fixed priced contracts.

Revenue from time and material, unit-priced contracts is recognized on an output basis, measured by units delivered, efforts
expended etc.

Revenue from fixed price contracts is recognized using the percentage-of-completion method, calculated as the proportion of the
cost of efforts incurred up to the reporting date to estimated cost of total efforts.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

»  Fixed Bid monthly milestone-based recognition — The practical expedient of revenue equals invoicing is applied as the amounts
invoiced directly correspond with the value transferred to the customer.

» Revenue from fixed price maintenance and support services contracts where the Group is standing ready to provide services is
recognized based on time elapsed mode and revenue is straight-lined over the period of performance.

» Revenue from license transactions where customers are given a right to use the intellectual property are recognised upfront at the
point in time when the license is delivered to the customer, simultaneously with the transfer of control.

» Revenue from bundled contracts is recognized separately for each performance obligation based on their allocated transaction
price (net of variable consideration).

» In cases where implementation and / or customisation services rendered significantly modifies or customises the license, these
services and license are accounted for as a single performance obligation and revenue is recognised over time using the percentage-
of-completion method, calculated as the proportion of the cost of efforts incurred up to the reporting date to estimated cost of total
effort.

» Revenue from the sale of distinct third-party hardware is recognised at the point in time when control is transferred to the customer.

The solutions offered by the Group may include supply of third-party equipment or software. In such cases, revenue for supply of such
third-party goods are recorded at gross or net basis depending on whether the Group obtains control of the specified goods or services
before it is transferred to the customer.

Revenue from sale of services is measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted for discounts and pricing
incentives, if any, as specified in the contract with the customer. Sales tax / Value Added Tax (VAT) / Goods and Services Tax (‘GST’) is
not received by the Group on its own account. Rather, it is tax collected on value added to the commodity / service rendered by the seller
on behalf of the Government. Accordingly, it is excluded from revenues.

The Group recognises an onerous contract provision when it is probable that the incremental costs of fulfilling the obligation under the
contract and an allocation of other costs directly related to fulfilling the contract exceed the economic benefits to be received.

Contract assets are recognised when there is excess of revenue earned over billings on contracts. Contract assets are classified as
unbilled receivables (only act of invoicing is pending) when there is unconditional right to receive cash, and only passage of time is
required, as per contractual terms. Unearned and deferred revenue (“contract liability”) is recognised when there are billings in excess
of revenues. The billing schedules agreed with customers could include periodic performance-based payments and/or milestone-based
progress payments. Invoices are payable within contractually agreed credit period. Advances received for services are reported as
liabilities until all conditions for revenue recognition are met.

Contract modifications: Services added that are not distinct are accounted for on a cumulative catch-up basis, while those that are
distinct are accounted for prospectively, either as a separate contract if the additional services are priced at the standalone selling price,
or as a termination of the existing contract and creation of a new contract if not priced at the standalone selling price.

Use of significant judgements in revenue recognition.

» The Group’s contracts with customers could include promises to transfer multiple goods and services to a customer. The Group
assesses the goods / services promised in a contract and identifies distinct performance obligations in the contract. Identification
of distinct performance obligation involves judgement to determine the deliverables and the ability of the customer to benefit
independently from such deliverables.

» Judgement is also required to determine the transaction price for the contract. The transaction price could be either a fixed amount
of consideration from the customer or variable consideration with elements such as volume discounts, performance bonuses, price
concessions and incentives. The transaction price is also adjusted for the effects of the time value of money if the contract includes
a significant financing component. The Group has applied the practical expedient provided by Ind AS 115, whereby the Group does
not adjust the transaction price for the effects of the time value of money where the period between when the control on goods
and services transferred to the customer and when payment thereof is due, is one year or less. Any consideration payable to the
customer is adjusted to the transaction price, unless it is a payment for a distinct good or service from the customer. The estimated
amount of variable consideration is adjusted in the transaction price only to the extent that it is highly probab